BUDGET
Fiscal Year
2019-2020

Prepared By
Port of Newport

Finance Department

1st Budget Committee Meeting May 14, 2019



2 0of 60



PORT OF NEWPORT
BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA
Tuesday, May 14, 2019, 6:00 p.m.
South Beach Activities Room
2120 SE Marine Science Drive, Newport, OR 97365

FREEHOLDER MEMBERS
Fred Postelwait (Pos. #1), Brian Barth (Pos. #2), Alan Brown (Pos. #3), and Gil Sylvia (Pos. #4).
PORT COMMISSION MEMBERS

Walter Chuck (Pos. #1), Secretary/Treasurer; Sara Skamser (Pos. #2), Vice President; Stewart Lamerdin
(Pos. #3), President; Jeff Lackey (Pos. #4); and Jim Burke (Pos. #5).

BUDGET OFFICER
Paula J. Miranda, General Manager

I.  Call to Order/Introductions — Commission President Stewart Lamerdin
II.  Election of Budget Committee Presiding Officer

SAMPLE MOTION: I move to select [enter name] as Budget Committee President.

II.  Receive Budget Message

Iv.  Budget Officer Reviews Budget Documents with Committee

v.  Committee Discussion of Budget

VL. Public Questions/Comments (5 minute limit per person)
VII.  Approval of Budget (or schedule additional meeting)

SAMPLE MOTION: I move that the Budget Committee approve the proposed budget [as
presented/amended] for the 2019-2020 fiscal year.

VIII.  Approval of Tax Rate to Submit to Assessor

SAMPLE MOTION: I move that the Budget Committee approve the tax rate of six-point-zero nine cents
(0.0609) per 81,000.00 of assessed value for operating purposes in the General Operating Fund and in
the fixed amount of eight-hundred-thousand U.S. Dollars (i.e. $3800,000.00) for payment of general
obligation bond principal and interest in the Bonded Debt Fund for the 2019-2020 fiscal year.

IX. Adjournment

The Port Newport South Beach Marina and RV Park Activity Room is accessible to people with
disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or for other accommodations for
persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to
Port of Newport Administration Office at 541-265-7758.

Port of Newport
Budget Committee Meeting Agenda May 14, 2019 Page 1 of 1

3 of 60



4 of 60



Port of Newport FISCAL YEAR 2019.2020

IL.

I1I.

IV.

Table of Contents

Page

BUAZEt MESSAZE ...uvviieiiieciiieeie ettt ettt e et e e tte e et e e eaaeessaeessseeeesseeeesseeensseeensseeensens 7
Proposed Local Budget (LB) State Forms Oregon Dept. of Revenue
A. General Operating Fund (GOF)........ccccoevvieviieniiennnne LB-20, LB-30 & LB-31 (2) ......... 11
B. Bonded Debt Fund (BDF)......cccccooviiiviiieiieeieeee. LB-35 e, 17
C. Facilities Maintenance Reserve Fund (FMRF).......... LB-1T o, 18
D. Construction Fund (CF) .....cccccoovviviiiiniiecieeeeeee. LB-10 i, 19
E. NOAA Lease Revenue Fund (NOAA).........cveen..e. LB-10 i, 21
Additional Budget Information
AL SChedule Of LeaSES.....ccuviiiiiiiieiieiie ettt ettt ettt e et e st e e b e ssneennaens 22
B. Recommended Personnel SEIrviCes ..........cocuierieiiieriieiiieiieeieeiteeee et 24
C. Recommended Capital Improvements:

1. Recommended Capital Improvements for FY 2019-2020.........cccceeveviieriieeenennnee. 26

2. Recommended Capital Improvements (By Fund) for FY 2019-2020.................... 27

3. Identified Future Capital Projects by 5-Year Strategic Business Plan ................... 28
D. Debt Service Requirements Detail...........ccceerieiiieniieiiieiieiiieiieeie et 32
Reference Material
A, Budget Calendar...........c.oooiiiiiiiiieiee et eareas 37
B. Budget Committee Responsibilities/Quorum Example..........ccccoeevveeciiieniieinciieeeieeeeen, 39
C. Oregon Budget Reference Material ...........ccccoeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieciccecee e 41
D. Notes and QUESTIONS .......cccuiiiiiieeiiieeeieeeeiee et e eeteeeeteeeeeteeesreeeeseeesbeeesseeesasesesasesenarens 59

5 of 60



6 of 60



Port of Newport

FY 2019-2020 BUDGET MESSAGE

DATE: April 29, 2019
RE: 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Proposed Budget
TO: Port of Newport Budget Committee

ISSUED BY: Teri Dresler. Interim General Manaaer/Budaet Officer

As | write this message, | am transitioning the responsibilities of Budget Officer to Paula Miranda the
new Port of Newport General Manager effective May 6, 2019. Paula will have the responsibility of
carrying the budget planning process forward to final approval.

The proposed budget figures are based on the best estimates of the revenue that will be generated
(resources) and expenses that will be made (requirements) beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30,
2020. | want to acknowledge that in the lead up to this proposed budget, Port staff spent immense
amounts of time working to fine tune the methods for estimating accurate year-end expenditures,
prepare prioritized expenditure requests, and forecasting accurate revenues. This responsibility rests
primarily on the shoulders of Mark Harris and Becca Bishop, and we owe them both an enormous
amount of gratitude. Their commitment to accuracy and process improvement have made a world of
difference in the efficiency of developing the budget and the reliability of the information.

The focus for estimating expenditures and a portion of revenues in this proposed budget came from the
recently completed 5-year Strategic Business Plan and Capital Facilities Plan Update. The process of
developing that plan demanded a strict focus on priorities for all lines of business for the next 5 years.
The priorities for capital projects, business development at the International Terminal, and increased
revenue in all areas of the Port are addressed as year one priorities in the plan.

The Port Commission held public work sessions on April 9" and 23, to review all aspects of the
revenue and expenditure estimates and to prioritize capital projects. Input from those meetings aided
staff in drafting this proposed budget.

The proposed budget document is divided into five separate funds: NOAA Lease Revenue Fund,
Facilities Maintenance Reserve Fund, Bonded Debt Fund, Construction Fund, and General Operating
Fund. All day-to-day operations are accounted for in the General Operating and NOAA Funds.

HIGHLIGHTS
Resources: The Port is budgeted to kick off FY 2019-2020 with a healthy net working capital in the
General Operating Fund of $2,450,000. Some of the increases you see in revenue are due to the

efforts to provide more realistic projections. Additional resources are projected as a direct result of
strategic rate increases primarily at the International Terminal and Commercial Marina.

7 of 60



At the International Terminal, staff recognized that rates had not been increased for moorage
“exceptions” since the Tariff was published in 2014. Those rates are proposed to increase by 68.8% in
the new budget. Additionally, storage rates are proposed to increase by 19%. Atthe Commercial
Marina, rate increases of 10% for semiannual and annual moorage licenses are proposed to generate
funding over three years’ of consecutive increases to help pay for electrical upgrades at Port Docks 5
and 7. The Port will also be contributing funds to that project, and has assigned unappropriated funds
in the Facilities Maintenance Reserve Fund of $150,000 and is budgeting $65,000 next fiscal year in
the same fund to increase the fund balance to support this project. The three year plan is for the Port
to set aside $65,000 each year to match the moorage rate increase contribution to the electrical
upgrade project fund. The total cost of the electrical upgrades is estimated to be $655,000.

The taxpayers of the district provide financial support to the Port District at a combined rate of 49.28
cents per $1,000 of Assessed Value (AV). 6.08 cents is the district’'s permanent rate and 43.20 cents is
the district's millage rate for the general obligation bonds (GO) for the terminal remediation and repair.

Expenditures: Budgeted expenditures include professional fees in the General Operating Fund to hire
consultants to assist with communications, grant writing services, scope of work preparation for an
enterprise resource program for the Port, and project management to support the work on a plan for the
International Terminal. The support and bandwidth these consultants will bring to the staff is
anticipated to help generate revenue and business opportunities identified in the Strategic Business
Plan.

Two and a half years of design and engineering for the replacement of the Port Dock 5 Pier has
culminated in a fully designed and permitted project with an estimated cost $2,400,000. To help defray
this cost, the Port has applied for a $1,200,000 Economic Development Administration grant, budgeted
as revenue in the Construction Fund, and plans to apply for a state grant in the amount of $250,000,
budgeted as revenue in the General Operating Fund and a transfer out expenditure to the Construction
Fund.

The Port plans to replace a total of 6 pilings at Port Dock 5 and 7. The total amount budgeted for that
project is $120,000 in the Facilities Maintenance Reserve Fund. The plan is to replace the pilings when
the PD 5 pier replacement project is underway to take advantage of reduced mobilization costs.

Budgeted capital equipment purchases include the replacement of 10 coin-operated washers at the
South Beach Marina/RV Park, a small pick-up truck for the Maintenance Department, and an outboard
motor for the Port’'s work skiff. The total amount budgeted for these expenditures is $44,300 in the
General Operating Fund.

The Port has hired a consultant to review and update all Port position descriptions and perform a
market study on our current wages. The result of that work will not be known until after the budget is
approved. The Commission requested $50,000 be budgeted in Personnel Services to allow for any
wage adjustments that may be approved following the study results. The Commission will be provided
the results of the study with options for implementing any recommended increases after the start of
fiscal year 2019-2020.

PERS retirement expenses are budgeted to increase by $22,000 over the current fiscal year, nearly a
40% increase. These rates are designated by PERS every two years, and FY 2018-2019 is the second
year of our prior significant rate increases. The new 2019 to 2021 rates have been factored into this
budget.

8 of 60



In the NOAA Lease Revenue Fund there is a significant expense budgeted under Contracted Services
of $93,050. This is needed to address annual service requirements per the lease agreement. This

includes a large painting project in the amount of $41,000.

FIG. 1 - HISTORICAL OPERATING REVENUES (General Operating Fund)

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20
Audit Audit Audit Projected Budget
Operating
Revenues $3,346,165 | $3,511,859 | $3,892,398 | $4,227,600 | $4,441,000
FIG. 2 - HISTORICAL OPERATING EXPENSES (General Operating Fund
FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20
Audit Audit Audit Projected Budget
Operating
Expenses $2,877,607 | $3,171,370 | $3,464,293 | $4,115,914 | $4,659,139

At the conclusion of the FY 2019-2020 budget year, the General Operating Fund is budgeted to retain
an unappropriated ending fund balance (UEFB) of $1,209,091. The Port Commission set a target
amount for UEFB of $1,200,000.

Alignment with the Strategic Business Plan: This proposed budget aligns with the action plan
included in the just completed Strategic Business Plan and Capital Facilities Plan Update. The staff is
already engaged in the lead up to the development of a plan for future business development and
diversification of revenue streams at the International Terminal. That plan will require outside support
and stakeholder involvement into FY 2019-2020. ldentifying a mix of uses and opportunities that will
lead to maximizing use of the Terminal and adjacent Port-owned property is essential. This plan will lay
the ground work for those conversations and research.

Items on the Strategic Business Plan and Capital Facilities Plan Update that have been included in this
proposed budget are the Port Dock 5 pier project and the interim improvements at Port Docks 5 and 7
as mentioned above.

Other items on the action plan list will be accomplished in future years as budget and other funding
allows.

CONCLUSION

The proposed FY 2019-2020 budget is my recommendation to the Budget Committee for approval.
This budget includes reviewed recommendations from Port staff and additional recommendations from
the Port Commission. As Budget Committee members, you may adjust the proposed budget. Once
you determine the budget meets with your approval, the Port Commission is not authorized to adjust
the budget by more than 10% without recommending and approving a supplemental budget.

9 of 60



The Port staff is focused on efficiency, creativity, and generating revenue wherever possible to support
the Port and its stakeholders. As such, the staff will spend only those resources needed to manage,
enhance, and maintain Port operations and activities to generate a more diversified revenue stream.

Many thanks to the Port Commission for their focus and input on the budget preparation and to the staff
for their commitment to moving the Port forward every day.

10 of 60



FORM RESOURCES
LB-20 General Operating Fund Port of Newport
(Fund) (Name of Municipal Corporation)
Historical Data Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Actual
Adopted Budget RESOURCES

Second Preceding First Preceding This Year Proposed By Approved By Adopted By
Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 2018-2019 Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body
1 1 |Available cash on hand (cash basis) or 1
2 1,872,138 2,241,176 1,729,218 | 2 |Net working capital (accrual basis) 2,450,000 0 0|2
3 4,051 14,474 4,000 | 3 |Previously levied taxes estimated to be received 10,000 0 0]3
4 8,195 9,834 8,000 | 4 [Interest 60,000 0 0| 4
5 0 0 0 | 5 [Transfers IN, from other funds 0 0 0|5
6 6 OTHER RESOURCES 6
7 7 |Operating Revenues 7
8 631,802 684,094 687,000 | 8 | Lease Revenue 720,000 0 0] 8
9 9 Newport International Terminal 9
10 111,743 85,602 100,000 | 10 Moorage 156,000 0 0]10
11 354,395 302,738 314,600 |11 Services 419,000 0 0]11
12 12| Commercial Marina 12
13 420,801 418,203 454,800 | 13 Moorage 512,000 0 0]13
14 278,580 378,776 342,500 | 14 Services 418,000 0 0|14
15 15| Recreational Marina 15
16 732,202 798,892 746,400 | 16 Moorage 850,000 0 0]16
17 13,804 13,854 20,100 |17 Live-aboard Revenue 26,000 0 0|17
18 21,693 32,122 21,800 |18 Services 42,000 0 0]18
19 44,368 58,504 86,200 | 19 Launch Ramp Revenue 72,000 0 0119
20 21,542 20,308 26,000 | 20 Boat and Trailer Storage 20,000 0 0]20
21 21 RV Park 21
22 586,231 656,198 730,000 |22 Main RV Park Site fees 750,000 0 0]22
23 155,139 229,300 186,300 | 23 Annex Site Fees 260,000 0 0]23
24 44,602 83,622 73,700 | 24 Dry Camping Site Fees 100,000 0 0|24
25 55,773 47,934 51,700 | 25 Services 48,000 0 0]25
26 3,086 36,807 5,000 | 26| Surplus Property and Dredge Sales 10,000 0 0|26
27 36,098 45,444 34,800 [ 27| Miscellaneous Revenue 38,000 0 0|27
28 28 28
29 29 |Non-operating Revenues 29
30 10,828 2,772 88,050 [ 30| Grants and Other 256,300 0 0130
31 218,878 0 34,500 [ 31| Capital Contributions 0 0 031
32 210,295 89,396 0 | 32| Loan Proceeds 0 0 0132
33 33 33
34 5,836,244 6,250,050 5,744,668 | 34|Total resources, except taxes to be levied 7,217,300 0 0134
35 98,000 | 35 |Taxes estimated to be received 105,000 0 0135
36 99,497 102,754 36 [Taxes collected in year levied 36
37 5,935,741 6,352,804 5,842,668 |37 TOTAL RESOURCES 7,322,300 0 0|37

11 of 60



12 of 60



FORM REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY
LB-30 General Operating Fund Port of Newport
(Fund) (Name of Municipal Corporation)
Historical Data Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Actual
Adopted Budget REQUIREMENTS DESCRIPTION
Second Preceding First Preceding This Year Proposed By Approved By Adopted By
Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 2018-2019 Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body
1 1 PERSONNEL SERVICES 1
2 1,134,147 1,191,613 1,530,000 | 2 [Personnel Services 1,735,539 0 0] 2
3 3 3
4 4 4
5 1,134,147 1,191,613 1,530,000 | 5 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,735,539 0 0|5
6 235 | 6 Total full-time equivalent (FTE) 25.0 0.0 0.0 6
7 7 MATERIALS AND SERVICES 7
8 1,337,289 1,539,961 1,702,200 | 8 |Materials and Services 2,136,710 0 0| 8
9 9 9
10 10 10
11 1,337,289 1,539,961 1,702,200 | 11 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 2,136,710 0 0|11
12 12 CAPITAL OUTLAY 12
13 654,831 118,295 30,000 [ 13|Capital Outlay 44,300 0 0] 13
14 14 14
15 15 15
16 654,831 118,295 30,000 | 16 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 44,300 0 0| 16
17 17 DEBT SERVICE AND TRANSFERS 17
18 699,934 732,719 883,714 | 18|Debt Service 786,890 0 0] 18
19 60,000 160,000 274,792 | 19|Transfers OUT, to Other Funds 1,399,770 0 0| 19
20 20 20
21 759,934 892,719 1,158,506 |21 Total Debt Service and Transfers 2,186,660 0 0|21
22 150,000 | 22 |Operating Contingency 10,000 0 0] 22
23 2,049,540 2,610,216 23 Ending Balance (Prior Years) 23
24 1,271,962 | 24 Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance (UEFB) 1,209,091 0 0] 24
25 5,935,741 6,352,804 5,842,668 | 25 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 7,322,300 0 0|25

13 of 60



FORM DETAILED REQUIREMENTS
LB-31 General Operating Fund Port of Newport
(Fund) (Name of Municipal Corporation)
Historical Data Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Ao Adopted Budget PERSONNEL SERVICES omberof | pange
Second Preceding First Preceding This Year Proposed By Approved By Adopted By
Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 2018-2019 Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body
1 848,595 889,755 1,108,602 | 1 |Wages 25.0 FTE | 11.19-70.59 1,251,224 0 01
2 82,558 79,136 103,109 | 2 |Payroll Tax Expense 116,212 0 0] 2
3 7,845 40,994 62,461 | 3 |PERS - Retirement 88,595 0 03
4 155,337 139,774 212,072 | 4 |Health Insurance 233,800 0 0] 4
5 30,991 36,248 38,121 | 5 |Workers' Compensation Insurance 40,208 0 0|5
6 8,821 5,706 5,635 | 6 |[Employee Incentives and Other 5,500 0 0|6
7 7 7
8 8 8
9 1,134,147 1,191,613 1,530,000 | 9 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,735,539 0 0|9

14 of 60




FORM
LB-31

DETAILED REQUIREMENTS

General Operating Fund

Port of Newport

(Fund) (Name of Municipal Corporation)
Historical Data Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Actual
adopted Budget MATERIALS & SERVICES
Second Preceding First Preceding This Year Proposed By Approved By Adopted By
Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 2018-2019 Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body
1 165,300 | 1 |Insurance 160,300 0 0]1
2 188,576 | 2 |Professional Fees 174,200 0 0]2
3 19,500 | 3 [Marketing and Promotion 20,200 0 0]3
4 17,150 | 4 |Dues and Subscriptions 25,000 0 0] 4
5 48,000 | 5 [Training and Education 27,750 0 0]5
6 17,450 | 6 |Travel 16,200 0 0]6
7 126,400 | 7 |Office and Admin Expense 128,650 0 07
8 6,000 | 8 |Bad Debt Expense 8,000 0 0] 8
9 9,500 | 9 [Licenses and Permit Fees 10,000 0 0]9
10 505,000 | 10|utilities 557,610 0 010
11 292,574 | 11|Contract and Support Services 342,250 0 011
12 151,700 | 12 |Repairs and Maintenance 197,100 0 0112
13 15,900 | 13 |Equipment 16,800 0 0|13
14 80,150 | 14 |Materials and Operating Supplies 83,900 0 0|14
15 7,000 | 15|Shipping Expenses - ILWU Wages (Billed to Ships) 2,000 0 0|15
16 38,500 | 16 |DSL and State Land Fees 72,250 0 0|16
17 13,500 | 17 |Trailer and Land Leases 13,200 0 0117
18 0 | 18|Grant Expenses 256,300 0 0|18
19 0 [ 19|Boat Disposal 25,000 0 019
20 20 20
21 1,337,289 1,539,961 1,702,200 | 21 TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 2,136,710 0 021

15 of 60



16 of 60



FORM
LB-35

BONDED DEBT
RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS

Bonded Debt Fund

(Fund)

Bond Debt Payments are for:

|:| Revenue Bonds or
General Obligation Bonds
Port of Newport

(Name of Municipal Corporation)

Historical Data

Actual

Second Preceding
Year 2016-2017

First Preceding
Year 2017-2018

Adopted Budget
This Year 2018-2019

DESCRIPTION OF
RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS

Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Proposed By
Budget Officer

Approved By
Budget Committee

Adopted By
Governing Body

. @ @@ @« Resources . @ ' @@ @ %
2 2 [Cash on Hand (Cash Basis), or 2
3 387,328 334,400 395,700 | 3 |Working Capital (Accrual Basis) 95,000 3
4 38,083 36,027 25,000 | 4 |Previously Levied Taxes to be Received 32,000 4
5 1,248 2,182 1,800 | 5 |Interest 7,000 5
6 0 0 0 | 6 [Transferred from Other Funds 0 6
7 0 0 0 | 7 |Proceeds from Refunding Bonds 0 7
8 426,659 372,609 422,500 | 8 |Total Resources, Except Taxes to be Levied 134,000 0] 8
9 488,455 | 9 |Taxes Estimated to be Received * 800,000 9
10 944,481 942,646 10 [Taxes Collected in Year Levied ———
11 1,371,140 1,315,255 910,955 | 11 TOTAL RESOURCES | 934000 o = o]

Requirements

12 12 Bond Issue Budgeted Payment Date 12
13 125,000 0 0 | 132007 0 13
14 120,000 125,000 0 | 14]2008 N/A 0 14
15 65,000 65,000 70,000 | 15]2011 January 1 70,000 15
16 155,000 135,000 270,000 | 16|2016 January 1 280,000 16
17 465,000 325,000 340,000 | 17 Total Principal 350,000 0|17
18 18 Bond Issue Budgeted Payment Date 18
19 2,500 0 0 | 192007 0 19
20 7,400 2,500 0 | 20]2008 N/A 0

21 270,630 268,355 267,055 | 21]2011 July 1 and January 1 265,000

22 291,210 275,925 273,900 | 222016 July 1 and January 1 266,000

23 571,740 546,780 540,955 | 23 Total Interest 531,000 0

Unappropriated Balance for Following Year By

Bond Issue Projected Payment Date

27

Ending Balance (Prior Years) ——

30,000 Total Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance (UEFB) 53,000 0]29

30 0 0130 Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent 0 0130
31 1,371,140 1,315,255 910,955 |31 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 934,000 31

17 of 60



FORM
LB-11

This fund is authorized and established by Resolution No. 1998-05

on 23 June 1998 for the following specified purpose:

Repair and replace Port infrastructure and facilities.

RESERVE FUND
RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS

Facilities Maintenance Reserve Fund

This reserve fund must be reviewed at least every 10 years

to be continued or abolished.

Reviewed in 2018; next review in 2028.

Port of Newport

(Fund) (Name of Municipal Corporation)
Historical Data Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Actual DESCRIPTION
Second Preceding First Preceding Adopted Budget RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS Proposed By Approved By Adopted By
Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 Year 2018-2019 Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body
1 1 RESOURCES 1
2 2 |Cash on Hand (Cash Basis), or 2
3 73,778 72,323 54,733 | 3 |Working Capital (Accrual Basis) 137,500 3
4 0 0 0 | 4 |Previously Levied Taxes Estimated to be Received 0 4
5 161 110 100 | 5 |Interest 2,700 5
6 60,000 160,000 264,792 | 6 [Transferred IN, from Other Funds 204,800 6
7 133,939 232,433 319,625 | 7 |Total Resources, Except Taxes to be Levied 345,000 0 0|7
8 0 | 8 |Taxes Estimated to be Received 0 0 0|38
9 0 0 9 [Taxes Collected in Year Levied 9
10 133,939 232,433 319,625 |10 TOTAL RESOURCES 345,000 0 0|10
1l 11 REQUIREMENTS 11
12 12 Object Classification 12
13 0 0 0 | 13 |Materials and Services 0 13
14 61,616 101,388 259,625 | 14 |Capital Outlay 120,000 14
15 0 0 10,000 | 15|Contingency 10,000 15
16 0 0 0 | 16|Transferred OUT, to Other Funds 0 16
17 17 17
18 18 18
19 72,323 131,045 19 Ending Balance (Prior Years) 19
20 0 0 50,000 |20 Reserved for Future Expenditure 65,000 20
21 021 Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance (UEFB) 150,000 0 021
22 133,939 232,433 319,625 |22 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 345,000 0 022

18 of 60



SPECIAL FUND

FORM RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS
LB-10 Construction Fund Port of Newport
(Fund) (Name of Municipal Corporation)
Historical Data Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Actual DESCRIPTION
Second Preceding First Preceding Adopted Budget RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS Proposed By Approved By Adopted By
Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 Year 2018-2019 Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body
1 1 RESOURCES 1
2 2 |Cash on Hand (Cash Basis), or 2
3 79,229 53,320 44,055 | 3 |Working Capital (Accrual Basis) 25,000 3
4 0 0 0 | 4 |Previously Levied Taxes Estimated to be Received 0 4
5 62 126 120 | 5 |interest 30 5
6 0 0 10,000 | 6 |Transferred IN, from Other Funds 1,194,970 6
7 0 0 0 | 7 [Loan Proceeds 0 7
8 0 0 0 | 8 |Intergovernmental 1,200,000 8
9 26,441 0 0| 9 |Grants 0 9
10 105,732 53,446 54,175 | 10|Total Resources, Except Taxes to be Levied 2,420,000 0 0]10
bl 0 | 11 |Taxes Estimated to be Received 0 0 0|11
12 0 0 12 [Taxes Collected in Year Levied 12
13 105,732 53,446 54,175 |13 TOTAL RESOURCES 2,420,000 0 0|13
14 14 REQUIREMENTS 14
15 15 Object Classification 15
16 0 0 0 | 16 [Materials and Services 0 16
17 52,892 11,035 28,000 | 17|Capital Outlay 2,410,000 17
18 0 0 10,000 | 18|Contingency 10,000 18
19 0 0 0 | 19|Transferred OUT, to Other Funds 0 19
20 20 20
21 21 21
22 52,840 42,411 22 Ending Balance (Prior Years) 22
23 16,175 | 23 Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance (UEFB) 0 0 0]23
24 105,732 53,446 54,175 | 24 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 2,420,000 0 0]24

19 of 60




20 of 60



FORM
LB-10

SPECIAL FUND
RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS
NOAA Lease Revenue Fund

Port of Newport

(Fund) (Name of Municipal Corporation)
Historical Data Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020
Actual DESCRIPTION
Second Preceding First Preceding Adopted Budget RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS Proposed By Approved By Adopted By
Year 2016-2017 Year 2017-2018 Year 2018-2019 Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body
1 1 RESOURCES 1
2 2 |Cash on Hand (Cash Basis), or 2
3 5,728,779 5,745,855 5,718,150 | 3 [Working Capital (Accrual Basis) 5,655,000 0 013
4 0 0 0 | 4 |Previously Levied Taxes Estimated to be Received 0 0 0] 4
5 10,962 13,022 12,000 | 5 |Interest 100,000 0 0|5
6 0 0 0 | 6 |Transferred IN, from Other Funds 0 0 0|6
7 2,533,302 2,532,759 2,544,000 | 7 |Lease Revenue 2,545,000 0 0|7
8 128 910 950 | 8 |Grants and Other 1,000 0 0] 8
9 0 0 0 | 9 [Revenue Bond Proceeds 0 0 0]9
10 8,273,171 8,292,546 8,275,100 | 10 |Total Resources, Except Taxes to be Levied 8,301,000 0 01|10
11 0 | 11 |Taxes Estimated to be Received 0 0 0]11
12 0 0 12 [Taxes Collected in Year Levied 12
13 8,273,171 8,292,546 8,275,100 |13 TOTAL RESOURCES 8,301,000 0 0|13
14 14 REQUIREMENTS 14
15 15 Object Classification 15
16 75,328 71,236 78,306 | 16 |Personnel Services (1 FTE) 80,495 0 0116
17 442,358 238,407 750,500 | 17 |Materials and Services 365,400 0 0117
18 12,296 23,600 86,000 | 18 [Capital Outlay 0 0 0]18
19 19 2010 Revenue Bond Budgeted Payment Date 19
20 870,000 910,000 945,000 | 20|Debt Service - Principal July 31 995,000 0 0120
21 1,127,334 1,091,734 1,052,271 | 21|Debt Service - Interest January 31 and July 31 1,006,500 0 0121
22 0 0 100,000 | 22 |Contingency 100,000 0 0122
23 0 0 0 | 23 |Transferred OUT, to Other Funds 0 0 0123
24 24 24
25 25 25
26 5,745,855 5,957,569 26 Ending Balance (Prior Years) 26
27 0 0 150,000 | 27 Reserved for Future Expenditure 150,000 0 0127
28 5,113,023 | 28 Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance (UEFB) 5,603,605 0 028
29 8,273,171 8,292,546 8,275,100 | 29 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 8,301,000 0 0|29

21 0of 60



Port of Newport

Schedule of Leases

FY 2019-2020

Start End Projected
Location/Lessee Date Date Leased Property Annual Revenue
South Beach
Anderson Construction a 4/1/2018 3/31/2020 = SB lot 11,820.00
Carver, Inc. - South Beach Fuel Dock 1/1/2010 | 12/31/2019 SB fuel dock and equipment 8,463.12
Greater Newport Chamber of Commerce a 11/30/2010 | 5/31/2019 | SB land - annual Newport Seafood & Wine Festival 5,600.00
Hatfield Marina Science Center 11/1/1962 = 3/30/2061 | SB land N/A
Newport Belle B&B 3/1/1999 | 3/31/2020 @SB H-dock moorage - paddle wheel steamer B&B 10,090.68
Newport Marina Store & Charter 2/1/1991 4/30/2026 | SB building - store 37,216.20
Oregon Brewing Company
House of Spirits b | 4/25/2006 @ 4/25/2026 | SB building - distillery and pub 30,621.84
Distillery/Cooperage b | 4/25/2006 | 6/30/2021 @ SB building 85,748.16
Brewery/Warehouse b| 5/1/1992 | 6/30/2022 | SB land and building 240,390.36
Oregon Coast Aquarium SB land N/A
Skyline Sheet Metall 5/1/2019 | 9/15/2019 @ SB land and building N/A
State of Oregon DAS 8/1/2018 | 7/31/2023 @SB A-dock moorage - OR State Police patrol vessel Guardian 8,700.00
Total South Beach 438,650.36
Commercial Marina
Captain's Charters 11/1/1987 = 10/31/2024 | CM land - Port Dock 1 14,816.40
Carver, Inc. - Port Dock 5 Fuel Dock 6/1/1996 | 2/28/2019 = CM fuel dock and equipment 9,405.96
Chelsea Rose 7/1/2014 = 6/30/2019 @ CM Port Dock 3 moorage 5,870.40
Embarcadero (aka Newport Marine Co.) a| 9/9/1974 9/8/2038 |« CM submerged land (portion of Port's OR DSL lease) 2,771.95
Englund Marine
Englund Marine - Land 9/1/1997 | 8/31/2027 @ CM land under retail store 22,133.76
Englund Marine - % of Sales 9/1/1997 | 8/31/2027 | CM land - quarterly % of retail sales 70,000.00
Pacific Shrimp - Ramp a| 12/1/1991 11/30/2019 | CM Port Dock 3 land 3,400.00
Patty Mae Barge 7/1/2014 = 6/30/2019 @ CM Port Dock 7 moorage 4,829.28
US Government - Customs/Border Patrol 1/1/1994 | 12/31/2022 | CM land and mobile office trailer 10,310.52
Yaquina Bay Yacht Club 7/1/2004 | 6/30/2024 CM land and lot storage 5,400.84

Total Commercial Marina

148,939.11

22 of 60




Port of Newport

Schedule of Leases

FY 2019-2020

Start End Projected
Location/Lessee Date Date Leased Property Annual Revenue
International Terminal
Foulweather Trawl 10/1/2010 | 9/30/2020 | NIT warehouse 21,928.08
Idea Fishworks 11/7/2018 | 10/31/2019 | NIT storage unit 8,985.60
J Lamb Marine Electric 5/1/2002 4/30/2019 | NIT office space 7,539.60
Northern Refrigeration 7/8/1998 7/8/2028 | NIT warehouse 4,405.68
Pacific Draggers, Inc. 12/29/1997 | 12/29/2027 | NIT land 5,400.84
Seafarer Brokerage 3/14/2011 | 5/31/2019 | NIT office space 3,974.64
TNMP Properties, LLC 1/1/2018 | 12/31/2022 | NIT land (fish meal plant) 55,536.00
TNMP Properties, LLC 1/1/2018 | 12/31/2022 | NIT storage units (2) 17,965.80
Yaquina Trawlers, Inc. 1/5/1998 1/31/2028 | NIT land 5,400.84
Total International Terminal 131,137.08
Total GOF $ 718,726.55
NOAA
US Government - NOAA 5/1/2011 4/30/2031 | NOAA facilities 2,545,200.00

TOTAL

$ 3,263,926.55

Paid annually.

No CPl increases for 5 years beginning 1/1/17 per LOU related to construction of SB multi-use area.

Annual lease rate calculated by US GSA.

23 of 60




Port of Newport

Recommended Personnel Services
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Salaries and Wages
Port Administration

General Manager
Administrative Supervisor

Director of Finance & Business Services
Accounting Supervisor
Accounting Specialist |
Accounting Specialist Il
Accounting Specialist Il

Director of Operations

Overtime

South Beach RV Park
RV Park Supervisor
Accounting Specialist Il
Accounting Specialist Il
Overtime

South Beach Marina
Recreational Harbormaster
Maintenance Il
Maintenance I
Maintenance I
Maintenance I
Overtime

Commercial Marina
Commercial Harbormaster
Maintenance I
Maintenance I
Maintenance I
Maintenance I
Maintenance I
Overtime

General Operating Fund NOAA Fund Combined
South Beach Commercial | International| Maintenance| 2018-2019 | 2019-2020 GOF 2018-2019 | 2019-2020 NOAA GOF + NOAA
Admin RV Park | Operations Marina Terminal | Department | Final Budget, Proposed % +/- Final Budget | Proposed % +/- % +/-
$ 130,563
39,738
88,428
55,501
38,931
35,961
35,961
89,171
5,000
519,255 $ 462,460 $ 519,255 12.3%
$ 41,753
35,261
27,263
5,000
109,277 104,394 109,277 4.7%
$ 57,283
35,367
34,667
34,667
32,673
3,000
197,657 187,085 197,657 5.7%
$ 57,283
38,274
34,667
33,330
33,330
33,330
6,000
236,215 192,877 236,215 22.5%

24 of 60



Port of Newport

Recommended Personnel Services
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

General Operating Fund NOAA Fund Combined
South Beach Commercial | International| Maintenance| 2018-2019 | 2019-2020 GOF 2018-2019 | 2019-2020 NOAA GOF + NOAA
Admin RV Park | Operations Marina Terminal | Department | Final Budget, Proposed % +/- Final Budget | Proposed % +/- % +/-
Salaries and Wages (continued)
International Terminal
NIT Supervisor $ 53,719
Overtime 8,000
61,719 54,619 61,719 13.0%
Maintenance Department
Maintenance Supervisor $ 41435
Maintenance I 34,667
Overtime 1,000
77,102 106,168 77,102 -27.4%
NOAA
MOC-P Manager $ 55713 | $ 57,962 4.0%
Salary and Wage Adjustments per Market Study
Phase | 50,000 n/a
Total Salaries and Wages 519,255 109,277 197,657 236,215 61,719 77,102 1,107,603 1,251,224 13.0% 55,713 57,962 4.0% 12.5%
Personnel Count (FTE) 8.0 3.0 5.0 6.0 1.0 2.0 22.0 25.0 1.0 1.0 26.0
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Total Payroll Tax Expense 46,282 10,597 18,865 22,611 5,558 7,474 103,109 111,387 8.0% 5,048 5,271 4.4% 7.9%
Retirement - PERS 31,882 6,710 19,409 19,000 3,790 4,734 62,461 85,525 36.9% 2,568 3,559 38.6% 37.0%
Health Insurance 71,616 26,856 44,760 53,712 8,952 17,904 202,272 223,800 10.6% 8,256 8,952 8.4% 10.6%
Health Insurance Reimbursement Arrangement 2,080 780 1,300 1,560 260 520 6,550 6,500 -0.8% 262 800 205.3% 7.2%
Employee Assistance Program 1,120 420 700 840 140 280 3,250 3,500 7.7% 120 140 16.7% 8.0%
Workers' Compensation Insurance 1,201 214 12,314 14,716 3,845 4,803 38,121 37,093 -2.7% 3,743 3,611 -3.5% -2.8%
Employee Incentives and Other 1,760 660 1,100 1,320 220 440 5,635 5,500 -2.4% 196 200 2.0% -2.2%
Market Study Adj - Payroll Tax Expense 4,825
Market Study Adj - PERS 3,070
Market Study Adj - Workers' Comp Insurance 3,115
Tax and Benefit Adjustments per Market Study 11,010 n/a n/a
Total Payroll Taxes and Benefits 155,941 46,237 98,448 113,759 22,765 36,155 421,398 484,316 14.9% 20,193 22,533 11.6% 14.8%
Total Personnel Services $ 675,196 $ 155,513 § 296,105 § 349,974 § 84,484 §$ 113,257 [ $ 1,529,001 | $ 1,735,539 13.5%pF $§ 75,906 | $§ 80,495 6.0% 13.2%

25 of 60



Port of Newport

RECOMMENDED CAPITAL PROJECTS & PURCHASES
Fiscal Year 2019-20
Updated 4/25/19

Profit
Priority Fund Capital Project List Center Cost Estimate
Staff Recommendations

PD5 pier construction - EDA grant application submitted for 50% of project cost. Additional grant

S CF funding is being researched through State of OR. CM $ 1,200,000
Replace 6 pilings - PD7 E and F, and PD5 (carryover from FY 2019) best value for this project if

S FMRF |completed with PD5 construction. CM 120,000
Work in Progress - ITSF - Semi-annual grading work for City of Newport SDC building permit

S CF 13743 ITSF 10,000

Capital Equipment Purchases

S GOF 10 Speed Queen washers SB 17,500

S GOF Maintenance Department Truck MD 15,000

S GOF Yamaha 115HP outboard motor CM 11,800
Total Recommended Capital Outlay $ 1,374,300

Priorities

S - Short term (next budget year)
N - Near term (2 to 5 years)

M - Mid term (6 to 10 years)

L - Long term (11 to 20 years)

26 of 60



Port of Newport

RECOMMENDED CAPITAL PROJECTS (by Fund)
Fiscal Year 2019-20

Fund Profit Capital Outlay External Funding
Capital Project Center Budget (Grants/Loans) Net Outlay
General Operating Fund (GOF)
10 Speed Queen washers SB $ 17,500 | $ - 17,500
Maintenance Department truck MD 15,000 - 15,000
Yamaha 115HP outboard motor CM 11,800 - 11,800
Subtotal 44,300 - 44,300
Facilities Maintenance Reserve Fund (FMRF)
Replace 6 pilings - PD7 E and F, and PD5 CM 120,000 - 120,000
Subtotal 120,000 - 120,000
Construction Fund (CF)
PD5 pier construction CM 2,400,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Work in progress - ITSF ITSF 10,000 - 10,000
Subtotal 2,410,000 1,200,000 1,210,000
Total $ 2,574,300 | $ 1,200,000 1,374,300




Table 6. 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan

Capital Improvements 2019 Cost Estimate Timeline
International Planning project to identify a mix of uses/opportunities that will maximize use | $15,000 (to cover cost 2019
Terminal Plan of the terminal and adjacent vacant port-owned properties, and increase net of part time Port project
revenues to the Port. Project completion primarily by Port staff. manager for research
and report preparation)
Mitigation Plan Planning project to address mitigation needs of future capital projects and $25,000 (to cover cost 2019 - 2021
potential inventory of mitigation sites. Anticipated to be completed by Port of part time Port project
staff in partnership with the Port of Toledo, Yaquina Bay users, NOAA, ODFW, manager)
and the USACE. Project completion primarily by Port staff.
RV Park Annex Plan | Planning and conceptual design project to redesign and reconfigure the RV $120,000 2019-2021
Park Annex to maximize space and functionality.
Planning Projects Subtotal $160,000
Port Dock 5 Interim | Interim improvements to replace pier and improve dock. e Approach pier: $2.4 2019-2022
Improvements e Approach pier replacement million
e Replace 6 pilings e Replace Pilings:
e Replace rods, whalers, rub boards, bumpers and triangles (PD 5C) $60,000
e Replace rods, bumpers, rub boards and 6 whalers (PD 5B) e PD5C:$270,000
e Replace rods and rub boards (PD 5X) e PD5B:$350,000
o New power pedestals e PD5X: $25,000
e Power Pedestals:
$350,000
All PD 5 Interim
Improvements: $3.5
million
Port Dock 7 Interim | Interim improvements prior to reconfiguration/replacement e Misc. Activities: 2019-2021
Improvements e Miscellaneous float and pile improvements and electrical $288,000
improvements e Replace Pilings:
e Replace 6 pilings $60,000
All PD 7 Interim
Improvements:
$348,000
Port of Newport BergerABAM, A19.0100.00

Strategic Business Plan
Newport, Oregon

March 2019
Page 32 of 43

28 of 60



Capital Improvements 2019 Cost Estimate Timeline
Reconfiguration Complete reconstruction and reconfiguration of commercial marina, including | Reconfiguration and 2019-2024
and Reconstruction | Port Docks 3 and 7, Upland Improvements, Swede’s Dock and Commercial Replacement Total:
of Commercial Marina channel. $14.75 million
Marina Dock 3 Improvements: e Dock 3: $110,000
e Replace rods, UHMW rub boards e Dock 7: $9.80
Dock 7 Improvements: million
e Furnish and drive new steel piles and pile caps (100 piles) e Swede’s Dock:
e Furnish and install new floats (38,093 SF) $335,000
e Furnish and install new gangways (3 @ 220 LF total) e  Mitigation Projects:
e Furnish and install new electrical equipment (38,093 SF) $1.0 million
e Dredging PD 7 berths * Channel Dredging:
Swede's Dock: $3.0 million
e New piling * Upland
Mitigation Projects: Improvements:
. o . . . .. - $500,000
e Miscellaneous mitigation projects including eelgrass mitigation
Channel:
e Dredging Commercial Marina channel
Upland Improvements:
e New waste oil collection facility/oil-water separator, pump out station
Fishing Pier Identify replacement strategy and design new fishing pier. $2.9 million 2022
Improvement e Structural and design improvements to maximize public access for
recreational fishing, including ADA improvements
Rogue Seawall e Phase Il study of Rogue seawall (geotech and repair alternatives) $1.36 million 2019-2021
Repair e Rogue seawall repairs
Safety and Security e  South Beach Marina electric load centers Safety and Security 2019-2024
e South Beach fuel tank replacement Total: $2.56 million
e Relocate/replace hoist dock electrical lines * South Beach Marina:
o Consolidate and upgrade total security camera network, port-wide $600,000
e South Beach Fuel
Tank: $300,000
e Hoist Dock Electrical
Lines: $102,000
e  Security Camera
Network: $200,000
Port of Newport BergerABAM, A19.0100.00

Strategic Business Plan
Newport, Oregon

March 2019
Page 33 of 43

29 of 60



30 of 60



Capital Improvements 2019 Cost Estimate Timeline

International e Grading of Port's 9-acre lot (cost does not include wetland mitigation) | International Terminal 2019-2023
Terminal e Asphalt lot west of shop, behind shop, and near the east entrance Total: $482,000
Improvements e Asphalt northwest corner of laydown area e Grading: $153,000

e Installation of waste oil collection tank * Asphalt: $234,000

e Mutually beneficial project(s) as required by development agreement | ® Tank: $45,000

with McLean Point developer. e Other: $50,000

RV Annex e Final plans, new RV Annex Total: $2.62 million 2019-2022

e New RV Annex construction
Capital Projects Subtotal $27.16 million
Total $27.32 million

Notes:

1 All cost estimates are planning-level and include a 20 percent construction contingency. Costs are provided in 2019 dollars.

2 Mitigation Plan cost ranges vary based on level of effort and could include mitigation and regulatory requirements of proposed capital projects and/or an inventory and
field work of Port property with mitigation potential.

3 Reconstruction and reconfiguration of commercial marina includes demolition of 7, and Swede’s Dock, and construction mobilization; does not include
demolition/reconstruction of the Dock 5 trestle. Port Dock 7 costs include 5 percent for engineering and permits and 3 percent for construction management.

4 Port Dock 5 and 7 interim improvements include 15 percent for engineering and permitting and 5 percent for construction management.

5 Fishing pier improvement costs include 20 percent for engineering and permitting and 8 percent for construction management.

6 Yard improvement costs include 15 percent for engineering and permitting and 5 percent for construction management.

Port of Newport
Strategic Business Plan
Newport, Oregon

BergerABAM, A19.0100.00
March 2019
Page 34 of 43

31 of 60



Port of Newport

Long Term Debt
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Projected FY 2019-2020 Projected
Balance Budgeted Debt Service Balance
Profit Original Original
Item# Center Loan Details Issue Amount 6/30/2019 Principal Interest 6/30/2020 Payoff Date
General Operating Fund (GOF)

1 NIT OR Special Public Works Loan #L00012 2004 86,683 36,916 5,305 2,215 31,611 12/1/2024
International Terminal dock remediation,
geotechnical investigation, and engineering
Project was funded with half grant, half loan.
6% Interest, 21 years

2 NIT OR Special Public Works Loan #Q10001 2013 1,300,000 1,007,081 64,304 29,300 942,777 6/1/2032
EPA Coalition Brownfields Loan for
remediation of hazardous materials at NIT
3% Interest, 21 years

3 NIT OR Special Public Works Loan #L12005 2013 3,000,000 2,448,365 123,460 94,800 2,324,905 7/1/2034
International Terminal loan
3.87% Interest, 21 years

4 NIT OR Business Development Loan 2012 400,000 400,000 40,000 - 360,000 Pending
International Terminal loan secured by
promissory note with loan forgiveness
of entire balance possible.
No interest, 15 years

5 Series 2013 FF&C Obligations 2013

SB-74% RV Park debt refinancing 2,523,400 1,986,900 151,700 61,130 1,835,200
NIT-26% New debt for International Terminal construction 886,600 698,100 53,300 21,478 644,800

Interest varies between 2.45 - 3.5%, 20 years 3,410,000 2,685,000 205,000 82,608 2,480,000 6/1/2034

5/6/2019 10of4

32 of 60



Port of Newport

Long Term Debt
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Projected FY 2019-2020 Projected
Balance Budgeted Debt Service Balance
Profit Original Original
Item# Center Loan Details Issue Amount 6/30/2019 Principal Interest 6/30/2020 Payoff Date

6 NIT Oregon Coast Bank #10032077 2014 412,352 299,761 25,704 17,600 274,057 7/15/2025
International Terminal buildings
Variable Interest (6% minimum), 15 years

7 cMm Toyota Financial Services 2017 35,303 23,227 6,962 953 16,265 9/1/2022
Capital lease for Commercial Marina forklift
4.5% interest, 5 years with $1 buyout

8 NIT Financial Pacific Leasing 2018 54,093 40,968 10,422 1,900 30,546 2/1/2023
Capital lease for International Terminal forklift
5.2% interest, 5 years with $1 buyout

9 cMm Capital Lease for Budgeted Forklift 2019 43,000 - 10,500 2,500 32,500 2/1/2023
Capital lease for International Terminal forklift

10 NIT City of Newport SDC #13743 2016 124,140 93,678 11,307 5,000 82,371 12/5/2035
Levied system development charges related to
the building permit to develop a shipping yard
5.5% Interest, 20 years

11 SB Oregon Brewing Company 2017 210,295 135,419 47,050 - 88,369 12/1/2021
49% of cost for South Beach multi-use area
land improvements
No interest, 5 years
Subtotal
General Operating Fund 9,075,866 7,170,415 550,014 236,876 6,663,401

5/6/2019 20f4

33 of 60



Port of Newport

Long Term Debt

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Projected FY 2019-2020 Projected
Balance Budgeted Debt Service Balance
Profit Original Original
Item# Center Loan Details Issue Amount 6/30/2019 Principal Interest 6/30/2020 Payoff Date
Bonded Debt Fund (BDF)
12 NIT General Obligation Bond Series 2011 * 2011 5,452,000 4,995,000 70,000 265,000 4,925,000 7/1/2041
To fund reconstruction and environmental
clean-up of the International Terminal
Interest varies between 2 - 5.5%, 30 years
13 NIT General Obligation Bond Series 2016 2016 7,610,000 7,050,000 280,000 266,000 6,770,000 1/1/2037
Refunding bond to refinance G.O. Bonds
Series 2007 and 2008
Interest varies between 2 - 4%, 20 years
Subtotal
Bonded Debt Fund 13,062,000 12,045,000 350,000 531,000 11,695,000

5/6/2019

3of4

34 of 60



Port of Newport

Long Term Debt
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Projected FY 2019-2020 Projected
Balance Budgeted Debt Service Balance
Profit Original Original
Item# Center Loan Details Issue Amount 6/30/2019 Principal Interest 6/30/2020 Payoff Date
NOAA Lease Revenue Fund (NOAA)
14 NOAA Revenue Bond Series 2010 2010 24,095,000 18,160,000 995,000 1,006,500 17,165,000 7/1/2032
Construction of NOAA Marine Operations
Center-Pacific secured by lease revenue
Interest varies between 3 - 6.125%, 20 years
Subtotal
NOAA Lease Revenue Fund 24,095,000 18,160,000 995,000 1,006,500 17,165,000
Total $ 46,232,866 $ 37,375,415 $ 1,895,014 $ 1,774,376 $ 35,523,401

5/6/2019

40f4

35 of 60



36 of 60



Port of Newport

600 S. E. BAY BOULEVARD NEWPORT, OREGON 97365

PHONE (541) 265-7758 FAX (541) 265-4235

www.portofnewport.com

BUDGET CALENDAR FY 2019-2020

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 26
Review calendar, committee, and budget officers

THURSDAY, MARCH 7
Dept. Heads receive direction on identifying
priorities/operational changes

TUESDAY, MARCH 19
Management Team convenes to discuss budget

TUESDAY, APRIL 9

1st Commission Budget Priorities Work Session,
Noon. Consider Staff Proposals: Rates, Personnel
Expenses, Project Priorities

THURSDAY, April 18
Commission Work Session packet distributed

TUESDAY, April 23

2nd Commission Budget Priorities Work Session,
Noon. Consider Staff Proposals: Revenue, Materials
& Services, Debt Service, Other Funds

THURSDAY, April 25
Finance Officer presents working budget for
Management Team review

WEDNESDAY, MAY 1

Publish first notice of budget committee meeting
(Notice to News Times by Fri April 26)

(Add Notice to Port’s web site or publish second
notice)

TUESDAY, MAY 7

Deliver agenda, budget message, and proposed
budget to committee members (1 week prior to
meeting)

TUESDAY, MAY 14
Budget committee meets, 6:00 p.m.
(Second Committee Meeting, May 21 if needed)

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 12
Publish hearing notice and summary
(Notice to News Times by Mon June 10)

TUESDAY, JUNE 25
Public hearing and adopt budget resolution, 6:00
p.m.

TUESDAY, JULY 9

Submit budget documents to County Assessor
- LB-50x2
- Budget Resolution x 2

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 24

Submit budget documents to County Clerk
- Budget Message (from budget committee)
- Budget Detail (LB forms from June meeting)
- Meeting affidavit (from paper)

BUDGET COMMITTEE MEMBERS
(Freeholder positions are three-year terms)

FREEHOLDERS

1. Fred Postlewait (1994).......... 30 June 2022
2. BrianBarth (1996)....ccccouniennnee 30]June 2020
3. AlanBrown (2003) ....ccovuverenne 30]June 2019
4. Gil Sylvia (2019) .ccervverrererrenns 30 June 2022

COMMISSIONERS
1. Walter Chuck (2011)..cceeeeenn. 30June 2019
2. SaraSkamser (2017)..cconeenns 30]June 2021
3. Stewart Lamerdin (2015)......30 June 2019
4. JeffLackey (2017) wooreerreeennens 30 June 2021
5. Jim Burke....nenreneenrennens 30June2019
BUDGET OFFICER

Teri Dresler, Interim General Manager
Paula J. Miranda, General Manager
FY 2019-2020

All budget meetings will be held at the South Beach
Marina & RV Park Activities Room.

-H#H#-

1 - Calendar, Committee and Budget Officer for Fiscal Year 2019-2020

37 of 60


http://www.portofnewport.com/

38 of 60



What the Budget Committee Does

» Receives the budget document

» Hears the budget message

» Hears & considers public comment

» Discusses and revises the budget as needed
» Approves the budget

» Approves the property taxes



Quorum example

Electors

0000 00000

If your full budget committee is 10 people quorum =6

COOKX 00000

Vacancies on the governing body side still count toward the
quorum. Quorum =6

Q0000 000X X

Vacancies on the electors side are not counted. Quorum =5

40 of 60



Local
Budgeting
in Oregon

(_\o REGON
DEPARTMENT

.'OF REVENUE



{—\o REGON
DEPARTMENT

.'OF REVENUE

Local Budgeting in Oregon

Table of contents

FATSE, The DASICS. ...ttt ettt et e e et e e te e eteeeteeeteeeaveeetseeasseeteeeateeeteeeabeeeteeenseeaateeasseeteeebeeeaeeeteeenreereens 1

What is the law?
What is a budget?
Who is on the budget committee?

The DUAGEt CYCLe......oeieie ettt 2

The nine steps

The budget dOCUMEN .........ooiii ettt 3

What is a fund?
What is an organizational unit?
What is a program?

Budget format

Revenues

Expenditures
Taxes and DUAGEtING. ........coouiiii e 5
Elections and bBUAGEING ..o 5

Election dates
The DUAGEt PIOCESS «...vvvviieei ettt a et aeas 6
Appropriations and their USE............oiiie s 7

Appropriations transfers

Supplemental budgets
AUAIES ... 8
Biennial DUAZEtING........c.oiiii e 8
QUESTIONS ANA AIISWETS .....vievveeeiietieiieteeieettete et este et e teeseseesseeseesseeseasseessesseessesssessesssessesssessaessenseessasseessesssessesseessesssessesssensans 9
CRECKIISES ...ttt 13
GLOSSATY ..vv ettt h bt a e a LRttt 13
WHheTE t0 et NP ..ot 15

For additional copies, write to:

Publications

Oregon Department of Revenue
PO Box 14380

Salem OR 97309-5075

please recycle

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

&

42 of 60



Local Budgeting in Oregon is a supplement to the Local
Budgeting Manual (150-504-420), hereafter called
the Manual. This booklet will introduce you to the
requirements of Oregon’s Local Budget Law, but it is not
a substitute for the Manual. Before you take any formal
action in the budget process, consult the Manual.

First, the basics

What is the law?

Most local governments in Oregon, from the smallest
cemetery district to the largest city, must prepare and
adopt an annual or biennial budget. (The only excep-
tions are a few types of local governments specifically
exempted.) Schools, counties, cities, ports, rural fire pro-
tection districts, water districts, urban renewal agencies,
and special districts are all subject to the same budget
provisions.

This is not unusual. Many states have specific laws
which require units of local government to prepare and
adopt annual operating budgets. Yet, Oregon’s budget-
ing system is considered one of the most progressive in
the nation. Why?

Look at Oregon’s Local Budget Law. (You'll find it in
Chapter 294 of the Oregon Revised Statutes.) The law
does two important things:

1. It establishes standard procedures for preparing,
presenting, and administering the budget.

2. It requires citizen involvement in the preparation of
the budget and public disclosure of the budget before
its formal adoption.

Many people rely on you, as an elected or appointed of-
ficial, to see that the annual budget is prepared correctly.
State officials check to see that the budget is prepared
and administered according to law, and citizens in your
district check to see that programs they want and need
are adequately funded. This makes budgeting in Oregon
a joint effort between the people affected by the budget
and the appointed and elected officials responsible for
providing the services.

To give the public ample opportunity to participate in
the budgeting process, local budget law requires that
a budget officer be appointed and a budget committee
be formed. The budget officer draws together necessary
information and prepares the first draft of the budget.
The budget committee then reviews and revises the
proposed budget before it is formally approved. Notices
are published, budgets are made available for public re-

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

view, and at least two opportunities for public comment
are provided. These requirements encourage public par-
ticipation in the budget-making process and give public
exposure to budgeted programs and fiscal policies before
their adoption.

Naturally, citizen involvement varies from one commu-
nity to the next. If the patrons in your district are active
and involved, you may find citizens asking for informa-
tion not specifically required under local budget law. It
is up to your local government to prepare a budget that
clearly outlines its fiscal policies and is satisfactory to
the voters of the district. If you can make your budget
clear and concise, you'll find that taxpayers have a better
understanding of the purposes for which their tax dollars
are spent. You may also find the citizen input informative
and beneficial.

What is a budget?

A budget is a financial plan containing estimates of ex-
penditures and revenues for a single fiscal year (July 1
through June 30).

Note: Local governments have the option of budgeting
on a 24-month “biennial” budget period or by fiscal year.
For the differences entailed in biennial budgeting, see
page 8. Throughout this booklet, we refer to “fiscal year”
but if a local government adopts a biennial budget, the
period referred to is a 24-month period.

Besides outlining programs for the coming year, the
budget controls the local government’s spending au-
thority. Since the budgeting process encourages citizen
input, the budget is also a vehicle for obtaining public
opinion about proposed programs and fiscal policies of
your district.

The content and detail of each budget will vary substan-
tially because of differences in the purpose, size, and
complexity of local governments.

Who is on the budget committee?

The budget committee consists of the members of the
local governing body (such as county commissioners or
school board members) and an equal number of citizens
at large. The citizens are appointed by the governing
body and serve terms of three years. Terms are staggered
so that about one-third of the appointed terms end each
year.

Note: For most of the districts in Multnomah County,
because the Tax Supervising and Conservation Com-
mission (TSCC) holds the budget hearing, the governing
body is the budget committee and there are no appoint-
ive members. These districts should consult with the
TSCC about their processes. This publication addresses
the budget committee process for all other districts in
the state.

43 of 60



The budget cycle

The nine steps

Budgeting is not something you do once a year. It’s a
continuous operation, and it takes 12 months to complete
a cycle. The budgeting process is actually in three parts:
The budget is prepared, approved, and finally adopted.
Your budget must be prepared far enough in advance
so that it can be adopted before June 30. After adopting
the budget, the governing body will make the necessary
appropriations and certify the tax levy to the county
assessor.

To simplify this rather complex process, we've divided
budgeting into nine steps.

Preparing the budget

1. Budget officer appointed. Each local government
must have a budget officer, either appointed by the
governing body or designated in the local govern-
ment’s charter. The budget officer is under the super-
vision of either the executive officer or the governing
body.

2. Proposed budget prepared. The budget officer
is responsible for preparing or supervising the
preparation of the proposed budget for presentation
to the budget committee.

Approving the budget

3. Budget officer publishes notice. When the proposed
budget and the budget message are ready, the bud-
get officer publishes a “Notice of Budget Committee
Meeting.” If notice is only published in a newspaper
of general circulation, it must be published at least
twice, five to 30 days before the scheduled budget
committee meeting date. The notice may be pub-
lished once in a newspaper (five to 30 days prior to
the scheduled budget committee meeting) as long as
it is also published on the local government’s website
at least 10 days before the meeting. The newspaper
notice must include the website address. If notice is
hand delivered or mailed, only one notice is required
not later than 10 days prior to the meeting.

4. Budget committee meets. At least one meeting must
be held to 1) receive the budget message and budget
document, and 2) hear the public. The budget of-
ficer provides a copy of the proposed budget to each
member of the budget committee. The copies may
be distributed any time before the advertised bud-

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

get committee meeting. It is also acceptable to wait
and distribute the budget at the advertised meeting.
When the budget is given to the budget committee, it
becomes a public record and must be made available
to the public.

The budget committee members cannot get together
in person, by telephone, or email before the advertised
meeting to discuss the budget. All budget discussions
must be held at public meetings.

At the budget committee meeting, the budget mes-
sage is delivered. The budget message explains the
proposed budget and significant changes in the local
government’s financial position. At this meeting, the
budget committee may provide members of the public
the opportunity to ask questions about or comment
on the budget. If public comment is not allowed at
this meeting, the budget committee must provide the
public with the opportunity at subsequent meetings.

After the initial meeting, if needed, the budget com-
mittee may meet as many times as needed to revise
and approve the budget. If two or more meetings are
held to take comment from the public, only the first
meeting to do so must meet the publication require-
ments explained in step 3. Notice of additional meet-
ings for this or any other purpose may be provided in
the same time frame and manner as notices of meet-
ings of the governing body. Notice of other meetings
of the budget committee must be provided as required
by Oregon public meeting law. All meetings are open
to the public.

5. Committee approves budget. When the budget
committee is satisfied with the proposed budget,
including any additions to or deletions from the one
prepared by the budget officer, the budget is ap-
proved. If the budget requires an ad valorem tax to
be in balance, the budget committee must approve
an amount or rate of total ad valorem property taxes
to be certified to the assessor.

Advertising and holding hearings

6. Budget summary and notice of budget hearing
published. After the budget is approved, a budget
hearing must be held by the governing body. The
budget officer must publish a summary of the bud-
get approved by the budget committee and notice of
budget hearing five to 30 days before the scheduled
hearing. This information must either appear in a
newspaper of general circulation, be mailed, or be
hand delivered.

If no newspaper is published in your district and esti-
mated expenditures for the ensuing year do not exceed
$100,000, you may provide the budget summary and
notice of budget hearing by posting it in three con-
spicuous places within the district for at least 20 days
prior to the date of the hearing.

See the Manual for details on publication requirements.

44 of 60



7. Budget hearing held. The budget hearing must be
held by the governing body on the date specified on
the public notices.

The purpose of the hearing is to receive citizens’ testi-
mony on the budget approved by the budget commit-
tee. Additional hearings may be held. All hearings are
open to the public.

Adopting the budget

8. Budget adopted, appropriations made, tax levy de-
clared and categorized. By law, the governing body
may make changes in the approved budget before or
after it is adopted, but no later than the beginning of
the fiscal year to which the budget relates. However,
without first publishing a revised budget summary
and holding another budget hearing:

¢ Taxes may not be increased beyond the amount
approved by the budget committee, and

¢ Estimated expenditures in a fund may not be in-
creased by more than $5,000 or 10 percent, which-
ever is greater.

After the budget hearing, and after considering
relevant testimony, the governing body adopts the
budget. It should not be formally adopted until the
latter part of June so last-minute revisions to revenue
or expenditure estimates can be incorporated.

The governing body must enact a resolution or ordi-
nance to 1) formally adopt the budget, 2) make appro-
priations, and if needed, 3) levy, and 4) categorize any
tax. The budget is the basis for making appropriations
and certifying the tax levy. The resolution or ordinance
must be adopted no later than June 30. See the Manual
for the format of the resolution or ordinance.

9. Budget filed and levy certified. The final step in
the budget cycle is to certify any necessary property
tax levy.

Districts levying a property tax must submit to the
county assessor’s office on or before July 15:

* Two copies of notice of levy and the categorization
certification, and

¢ Two copies of the budget resolution or ordinance.

Each local district that does not levy a property tax
must send a copy of the resolution adopting its budget
and making appropriations to the Department of Rev-
enue on or before July 15. All local districts send a copy
of the complete budget to the county clerk on or before
September 30. School districts also submit a copy of the
budget to the county education service district office
and to the Oregon Department of Education.

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

3

The budget document

All budgets must meet certain minimum requirements,
outlined here. For specific examples consult the Manual.

Under local budget law the budget must follow a basic
format. Expenditures generally are broken down first
by fund, then by organizational unit or program, and
then, more specifically, by object classification and object.
Revenues are broken down by fund, at the least.

What is a fund?

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with self-balanc-
ing accounts set aside to carry on a specific activity or
to meet certain objectives in accordance with a specific
regulation. The requirements and resources of a fund
must always balance. Every budget has at least one fund
(commonly called the General Fund) which is used for
everyday operation of the local government.

Depending on the size and complexity of your local gov-
ernment and the services it provides, your district may
also have a number of special funds. The most common
reason for establishing a special fund is to account for a
revenue source whose use is limited to a particular kind
of expenditure. Examples include: debt service funds,
construction funds, reserve funds, street funds, water
funds, and sewer funds.

What is an organizational unit?

Some funds are broken down to account for one or more
organizational units or activities, which are merely sub-
divisions of a fund. An organizational unit might be a
department, office, or division. What you call these units
is up to your local government.

What is a program?

Budget requirements may be prepared by program.
Programs are groups of activities to accomplish a major
service or function. Schools use programs in budgeting.

Budget format

Your budget detail sheets for expenditures and revenues
must show in parallel columns:

1. Actual expenditures and revenues for two years pre-
ceding the current year.

2. Budgeted requirements and revenues for the current
year.

45 of 60



3. Estimated requirements and revenues for the coming
fiscal year. Upcoming fiscal year estimates should
be broken into three columns: proposed, approved,
and adopted, showing estimated amounts as they are
considered through each step of the budget process.

Information in each column must be itemized to show
all estimated or incurred requirements and revenues.

Revenues

Budget revenues are divided into two types: ensuing
year property tax and nonproperty tax revenues. Prop-
erty taxes shown in your budget will not be the same as
the property tax “levy” you submit to the assessor.

There are three reasons for this. First, not all taxpayers
pay their taxes in the year billed. Second, discounts are
given for timely property tax payments. Third, the Or-
egon Constitution sets a limit on the amount of taxes that
can be collected from an individual property.

You must estimate the amount of taxes to be lost because
of the “constitutional limits” and “discounts allowed and
other uncollected amounts.”

The total of these amounts plus estimated taxes to be
received cannot exceed your district’s taxing authority,
which includes its rate limit, voter approved local option
levies, and levies to repay bonded debt. This total is the
amount of tax levy that is certified to the assessor.

The amount estimated as “loss due to constitutional
limit” will vary from district to district. Late in October
or early November each year, the tax collector sends the
district a report on the amount of taxes that will actually
be billed for the district. This is called the taxes imposed.

“Discounts allowed and other uncollected amounts”
normally will represent only a small percentage of the
property tax levy. Contact your county tax collector for
help in determining this percentage.

You next need to calculate how much tax revenue can be
raised using the district’s permanent rate limit.

Rate Limit

times
Estimated District Assessed Value
equals
Amount Raised By Rate Limit

This amount plus any local option taxes or bond levies,
less the estimate of taxes to be lost, is the amount of tax
revenue estimated to be received. If this amount is less
than the amount needed for the budget, requirements
must be reduced, other sources of revenue found, or ad-
ditional taxing authority approved by voters.

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

Expenditures and requirements: by fund

Under the law, budget expenditures and other require-
ments must be itemized to show all estimated expenses.
The estimates may be prepared either by program or
organizational unit. Within any fund each expenditure
must be detailed and identified, arranged by organiza-
tional unit if applicable, and put into one of these major
object classifications:

® Personnel services includes all salaries, fringe ben-
efits, and miscellaneous costs associated with salary
expenditures.

e Materials and services includes contractual and other
services (example: audit or legal services), materials,
supplies, and other charges.

e Capital outlay includes acquisition of land, buildings,
improvements, machinery, and equipment.

Some special expenditures and requirements do not fit
logically into one of these three object classifications.
These are put in special categories. The most common
special categories are:

¢ Debt service includes repayment of principal and in-
terest on bonds, interest-bearing warrants, and short
term loans.

e Transfers. An amount to be given as a resource to
another fund in the budget.

* General operating contingencies. A special amount
set aside in the upcoming year for unforeseen
expenses.

e Unappropriated ending fund balance. A special
amount set aside in a budget for use as a resource in
the beginning of the next fiscal year after it was bud-
geted.

Expenditures and requirements: program budgets

Program budgets are prepared differently. Estimates for
each program must be arranged by activity and then put

into separate object classifications, as already described.

46 of 60



Taxes and budgeting

Many local governments rely heavily on property taxes
to finance services they offer. In some cases, services are
paid for entirely by property taxes.

The amount and type of tax a local government may levy
is limited by the Oregon Constitution and Oregon law.
The constitution allows a local government to levy an-
nually the amount that would be raised by its permanent
rate limit without further authorization from the voters.
Revenue from the permanent rate-limited levy can be
used for any purpose.

When a local government has no permanent rate limit
or when the rate limit does not provide enough revenue
to meet estimated expenditures, the government may
request a local option levy from the voters. These levies
are in excess of the rate limit and require voter approval.
Currently, ESDs cannot use the local option tax. Schools
and community colleges can use the local option tax, but
the amount they may request is limited.

Alocal option can be used for general purposes or a specif-
ic activity. The levy may be stated as a total dollar amount
or rate to be levied uniformly for a period. If the levy is for
an operating purpose, the period cannot exceed five years.
If the levy is for a capital project, the period cannot exceed
10 years or the life of the capital asset, whichever is less.

A debt service levy is used only to pay principal and
interest on bonds. The constitution does not require vot-
ers to approve this type of levy each year. That’s because
voter approval of a bond issue is considered approval
of levies necessary to repay bond interest and principal.

By law, some local governments are limited on the total
amount of tax they may levy. These limits are computed
as a percentage of a local government’s property value.
For specific examples, consult the Manual or the Depart-
ment of Revenue, Finance and Taxation Unit.

Tax levies not made according to law may be voided by an
appeal to the Oregon Tax Court. Appeals can be made by
the county assessor, county court, board of commissioners,
Oregon Department of Revenue, Tax Supervising and
Conservation Commission, or 10 or more interested tax-
payers. An appeal must be submitted within 30 days after
the local government certifies the tax levy to the county
assessor.

In addition, since 1991, the Oregon Constitution has
limited the amount of taxes that may be imposed on any
property. For any property, the maximum amount of
taxes to support the public school system is $5 per $1,000
of real market value. The maximum amount of taxes to
support other government operations is $10 per $1,000 of
real market value. Certain types of taxes may not be sub-
ject to the limit. See the Manual for further information.

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

5

Elections and budgeting

Many local governments find that available revenues, in-
cluding revenue from levies made under the permanent
rate limit, are not enough to finance proposed expendi-
tures. In this case, there are two alternatives:

1. Lower the proposed expenditures to equal available
revenues, or

2. Schedule a tax levy election to obtain voter approval
to levy a local option tax.

All local governments that decide to schedule a levy
election are limited to four election dates each year. The
levy election must be on one of these dates.

See your county elections officer for more information.
The county elections officer publishes election notices,
sample ballots, and a list of polling places.

Election dates

e Second Tuesday in March

¢ Third Tuesday in May

e Third Tuesday in September

e First Tuesday after the first Monday in November

Even if the voters have not yet approved the tax levy be-
fore the end of the fiscal year, the governing body must
adopt the budget and make appropriations by June 30
to lawfully spend public funds in the new fiscal year.
When the district is planning on a tax levy election in
September, it must request in writing from the county
tax assessor an extension to certify its tax levy. When
the tax levy is finally determined, the governing body
adopts the resolution to levy taxes and submits its final
levy certification to the assessor. If the late levy election
failed, the governing body must reduce its budget ap-
propriations to reflect the amount of taxes it actually has
authority to levy.

Tax levy ballot language sometimes must contain cer-
tain wording or statements required by law or must not
exceed other limits. For more details, see the Manual, or
download a copy of the Tax Election Ballot Measure Manual
(150-504-421).

47 of 60



‘Buljy Jo seyep |enjoe 1oy

48 of 60

34819 AJUno9 8y} JoBIU09 U0 ‘Jenuepy - ¢
Suoljo8|3 9)e1s Jo Alejaloag ay) 993, 4
“Jolllea pjay aq Aew suono9|g , l
sbunas|y
"3s0d ued su3sIp a9)IWwo) 12bpng
[lews "K1aA1p [euonppy
sLAinrAg / og eunr Ag puey fo jrew
_| ] Kq Jadedsmau [— |_
| ul ysiignd |
uonnjosay suon Ao el
uopeud | | -eudoiddy paiinbay p BurieaH Alewwng % 196png s1e9 Bunesy 196png 192110
-0Jddy | « MeN | — — — — MOTXEL « 106png | ée——| % 9010\ | € pasodoly |€[e9MWWOD €| JO 9ONON | € pasodoid |« 196png
‘Ana] g jebpng| uopos|goN | BUlWIEled PIOH ysiiand anoiddy 196png ysiand aledald juloddy
Jwagng Jdopy
2 ¥
\ s paiinbay
Y uonds|g skeq og 0} § 92110U }2UJIIUI BUO
7/ Ao pue sadedsmau
7 uondo 3UO JO S3DI0U
/s [e207 4 Jadedsmau om|
- J skep 0 03 g
s)nsay 18010
uonoa|y |[€— ,UoIdd|3 — Suoid9|g
alejoeQ PIoH AyoN
TR $s930.d 19bpng ay L

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)



Appropriations and their use

When the nine budget steps are completed and the
new fiscal year begins, the governing body works from
appropriations. Amounts listed in the appropriation
resolution provide authority to spend public funds in the
next 12 months. However, appropriations may be made in
broader categories than the detail presented in the budget.

District spending is limited to the schedule of appro-
priations. But what if it is necessary to exceed original
appropriations? This may be done after transferring
appropriations or preparing a supplemental budget.
There are special provisions for exceeding appropria-
tions due to civil disturbance, fire, flood, earthquake, or
other calamity.

Appropriation transfers

The governing body’s spending authority in existing ap-
propriations may be changed by 1) transferring amounts
among existing appropriations in the same fund, or 2)
transferring from an existing appropriation in one fund
to an existing appropriation category in another fund.

Whenever you need to transfer an appropriation, the
governing body must enact a resolution or ordinance
providing for the transfer. This enactment must be made
before any overexpenditure is incurred. Once a transfer
is authorized, the expenditures can be made.

Supplemental budgets

By transferring appropriations, a governing body usu-
ally has enough flexibility to carry out the programs
prescribed in an adopted budget. But there will be times
when an adopted budget gives no authority to make
certain expenditures or when revenues are received for
which the governing body had no previous knowledge.
In these cases it is possible to use a supplemental budget
to authorize expenditures or spend additional revenues
in a current fiscal year. (There are a few special revenues
which may be spent without a supplemental budget.)
Supplemental budgets cannot be used to authorize a
tax levy.

Local budget law does not contemplate the involvement
of the budget committee in adopting supplemental bud-
gets. The governing body may adopt a supplemental
budget at a regular public meeting if prior notice is given
and the expenditures in the supplemental budget are 10
percent or less than of the budget fund being adjusted.
If the expenditures are more, the governing body must

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

publish a summary of the changes in the supplemental
budget and hold a special hearing.

Public officials who spend money unlawfully, in excess
of authorized amounts or for purposes not provided by
law, are civilly liable. The district attorney or a taxpayer
may file suit for return of the money.

For more details, see Oregon Revised Statute 294.471 or
the Manual.

49 of 60



Audits

The final phase in the budgeting cycle is an audit of the
previous fiscal year. This usually is done soon after a new
fiscal year begins. Most local governments are subject to
Oregon’s Local Budget Law. Most of these governments
are required to have their accounts and fiscal affairs au-
dited and examined annually.

An audit must be done by the Secretary of State or
an auditor certified by the Oregon State Board of Ac-
countancy to conduct municipal audits. The auditor
examines financial statements, books, records, and other
financial data of your local government. The auditor
also will look at any activities that relate to collection,
receipt, custody, handling, expenditure, or disbursement
of public funds.

Contact the Secretary of State’s office, Audits Division for
further explanation or questions.

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

Biennial budgeting

Local governments may budget either on a one-year (fis-

cal year) or a two-year (biennial) cycle. The governing

body may, by ordinance, resolution, or charter, provide
that the budget be prepared for a period of 24 months.

The biennial budget period begins July 1 and ends June

30 of the second following calendar year. In brief, the

differences between fiscal year budgeting and biennial

budgeting are:

1. Members of a budget committee who prepare a bi-
ennial budget are appointed to four-year terms. The
terms of the members should be staggered so that
one-fourth of the terms end each year.

2. The budget estimate sheets containing the estimates
of resources and expenditures in a biennial budget
must show:

* Actual expenditures for the two budget periods
preceding the current budget period,

* The estimated expenditures for the current budget
period, and

¢ The estimated expenditures for the ensuing budget
period.

3. The summary of the budget as approved by the bud-
get committee that is published along with the notice
of the budget hearing will show the proposed budget
for a two-year period.

4. If a taxing district adopts biennial budgeting, the bud-
get committee must approve the amount or rate of ad
valorem property taxes for each year of the biennium.

5. After the budget committee approves a biennial
budget and before the budget is adopted, the govern-
ing body may not increase the amount of estimated
expenditures for the biennium in any fund by more
than $10,000 or 10 percent, whichever is greater, and
may not increase the amount or rate of the tax levies
approved by the budget committee for either year of a
biennial budget unless the amended budget document
is republished and another budget hearing is held.
Once the budget is adopted, the tax amount cannot be
increased in the second year.

6. If a district adopts a biennial budget, then after the
budget hearing and before the June 30 that precedes
the start of the budget period, the governing body
must pass a resolution or ordinance to adopt the bud-
get and make appropriations for the ensuing 24-month
budget period. The governing body must also pass a
resolution or ordinance to levy and categorize property
taxes for each year of the ensuing budget period.

50 of 60



7. Whether a budget is for a fiscal year or for a biennium,
certification of property tax levies and a copy of a
resolution or ordinance levying and categorizing taxes
for the ensuing year must be submitted to the county
assessor every year by July 15.

8. Districts that must submit their budgets to the De-
partment of Revenue or to the Tax Supervising and
Conservation Commission must do so only during
the first year of a biennial budget period.

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

Questions and answers

What is a budget committee?

The budget committee is the district’s fiscal planning
advisory committee. The committee consists of the
elected governing body members and an equal number
of qualified district voters appointed by the governing
body.

Who can serve on a budget committee?

Any qualified voter of the district appointed by the
governing body except officers, agents, or employees of
the district.

Are budget committee members paid for
their work?

Budget committee members cannot receive any com-
pensation for serving as committee members. They may
be eligible to receive reimbursement for travel or meal
expenses that are incurred as a result of meetings or other
authorized committee functions.

How long do members serve?

Citizen budget committee members are appointed by
the governing body for three-year terms. Terms are stag-
gered so that approximately one-third of the terms expire
each year. Members may be re-appointed for successive
terms. If a member resigns, becomes ineligible, or is un-
able to serve out his or her term of office, the governing
body appoints a replacement to complete the term. There
is no provision in the law for “alternate” members.

What if no one will serve on the
budget committee?

If the governing body is unable to appoint qualified
individuals to vacant positions, the budget committee
may function with a reduced number of members. For
example, if a five-member governing body, after mak-
ing a good faith effort to seek qualified citizen members,
can fill only three of the appointed positions, the budget
committee can function with eight members rather than
ten. A majority would then be five instead of six. The
membership may not be reduced because governing
body positions are currently vacant.

Who are the budget committee officers?

Only a presiding officer position is required by law. The
presiding officer’s duties are to chair budget committee

51 of 60



meetings. The chair can be either an elected or appointed
member. Some districts may elect a vice chair to conduct
meetings in the presiding officer’s absence. The commit-
tee should also designate someone to be responsible for
keeping an official record of its proceedings. All mem-
bers of the budget committee have the same degree of
authority and responsibility.

What is the budget committee’s main function?

In a series of public meetings the budget committee
meets to review, discuss, make additions or deletions,
and approve the proposed budget presented by the local
government’s budget officer. Upon completion of its
deliberations, the committee approves the budget and
sets the tax rate or amount needed to balance the budget.

What are the rules about budget
committee meetings?

Budget committee meetings are open to the public. A
quorum is required to conduct committee business. A
majority of the budget committee membership is required
to approve any motion.

Minutes of each meeting are kept. The minutes are the
official record of budget committee meetings. It is im-
portant that minutes are accurate. The budget process
is required by law and districts may need to document
that the process was in compliance with state statutes.
The approval of the final budget document and the rate
or amount of tax to be imposed, in particular, should be
in the form of motions with the votes recorded in the
minutes.

What happens at the first budget
committee meeting?

Generally, the budget committee elects a chair and other
officers, receives the budget message, hears patrons, sets
dates for future meetings, and adopts rules of order.
These rules should establish an operating procedure for
the budget review process. The committee may adopt
Robert’s Rules of Order or establish its own. In any event,
the budget committee needs to discuss and agree upon a
procedure. The committee may not adopt any rule which
would allow it to take official action with approval of less
than a majority of its members in agreement.

What happens at subsequent budget meetings?

Generally, the second and other subsequent meetings
take place at least one week after the first meeting. This
practice allows budget committee members to review the
proposed budget document. Budget committee members
may wish to make arrangements with the district admin-
istrator and/or budget officer to visit district operations
during this week, make inquiries about specific budget
items, request additional information, or indicate areas
of interest they believe should be highlighted at future

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

meetings. In subsequent meetings, the entire budget is
reviewed fund by fund and/or section by section.

At least one meeting must provide the opportunity for
the public to ask questions and make comments about
the budget. Notification of the first budget committee
meeting in which public questions and comments will be
heard is required in a newspaper of general circulation,
by a first-class mailing to every street address or P.O.
box in the district, or by hand delivery to every street
address. See Chapter 9 of the Manual for more detail on
publication requirements.

How many meetings are required?

The number of meetings required varies from year to year
and with the unit of government. Some districts meet only
once, others may need to meet several times. Factors such
as the detail in the budget documents, size of the district,
number of funds, presentation of the budget, and the per-
sonalities of individual budget committee members will
result in various numbers of meetings.

When will | get a copy of the budget?

The budget officer provides copies of the proposed bud-
get at or before the first budget committee meeting, when
the budget message is presented by the executive officer.

What other information is available to the
budget committee?

The budget committee may request any information re-
quired during consideration of the proposed budget from
any district officer or employee. The budget committee
may also require staff members to attend budget com-
mittee meetings. Such requests by the budget committee
should be made through the chief administrative officer
of the local government and/or budget officer.

How is the material that is presented by the
budget officer at the first meeting prepared?

The budgeting process is a continuous cycle that gener-
ally begins long before the budget committee meets. Each
district has its own procedures for budget review and
development. In larger districts, each part of the orga-
nization may have its own budget preparation process,
in which funding requests for the upcoming fiscal year
are developed and then “rolled up” into the total agency
budget requirements. By the time the budget commit-
tee receives the budget message and budget document,
many hours of work have been put into budget develop-
ment. The budget officer coordinates these efforts with
district staff and other administrators.

What is a quorum? What happens if we don’t have
a quorum at a budget committee meeting?

A quorum is one more than half the total number of the
members. If a quorum is not present, the members who



are present may discuss committee business, but no ac-
tion may be taken.

What if we have a quorum, but cannot get a
majority of the members of the budget committee
to approve the budget?

Any action by the budget committee requires approval
by a majority of the entire committee. For example, if the
budget committee has ten members, six are present at a
meeting (a quorum), but only five of the six present agree
with a motion to approve the proposed budget, then the
motion does not pass. It is up to the budget committee to
negotiate a budget and tax that is acceptable to a majority
of its members.

May | ask questions other than at budget
committee meetings?

It could be very helpful and a courtesy to other budget
committee members if inquiries are not restricted to com-
mittee meetings. Checking with the administrator and/
or budget officer between meetings allows members to
explore budget items of interest in greater detail than
might be practical during committee meetings. Ques-
tioning also assists the administration/budget officer
by giving an indication of concerns, making it possible
to highlight issues that may be of interest to the entire
budget committee.

Can | consult with other budget committee
members about details in the budget other than
at budget committee meetings?

Discussion of the budget committee must always take
place in the forum of a public meeting. One of the
reasons Oregon uses the budget committee process is
to ensure public comment and full disclosure of budget
deliberations. It is much better to abide by the spirit of
the law and hold all discussions at budget committee
meetings.

Can the budget committee add or delete
programs or services?

Generally, the budget committee’s role is not to
directly establish or eliminate specific programs or
services. Standards and budget parameters established
by the governing body give the budget officer and
administrative staff general guidelines for budget
development. The budget officer then prepares a budget
which reflects the governing body’s parameters. This
proposed budget is what the budget committee considers
during its meetings. Budget committee influence
on programs and services is most often exerted at a
higher level, when it approves the overall budget and
establishes the tax levy.

Having said all that, if a majority of the budget committee
agrees, it can add or delete funding for specific services.
Public participation at budget committee meetings may

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

influence budget committee decisions. However, final
authority for administration rests with the governing
body. The governing body can make changes after the
budget committee has approved the budget, although
they may have to re-publish the budget and hold another
public hearing to do so.

Can the budget committee determine how much
an employee is paid?

The budget committee does not approve new person-
nel, employee contracts or salary schedules, nor does it
negotiate salary contracts.* However, the adopted salary
schedules, negotiated contracts, and other materials that
have a fiscal impact on the budget document may be
requested for review by the budget committee. Through
its authority, the budget committee may direct the ad-
ministration to make dollar adjustments (increases or
decreases) in the proposed budget.

What happens after all the sections of the budget
are presented?

After all presentations are made, all patron input
received, and all other related issues discussed, the
budget committee approves the budget. The approved
budget recommends a level of spending for the year.
The approved budget document also specifies the full
amount of the property tax levy authority that may be
certified to the tax assessor. The governing body may
reduce the levy, but the rate or amount of the levy
approved by the budget committee cannot be increased
without republishing the financial summaries. Approval
of the tax levy and the budget should be in the form of a
formal motion, with the vote recorded in the minutes of
the meeting.

Does the budget committee have any
other duties?

At the end of the final meeting where the budget is ap-
proved, and the tax levy rate or amount is established,
the committee’s work is finished as far as local budget
law is concerned. Local charters may have additional
duties. Frequently, budget committee members express
a desire to assist the governing body and administration
in any public meetings or appearances concerning the
budget. The budget committee may be reconvened by the
governing body at a later date in the event the financial
conditions in the district change. A meeting for this rea-
son is called at the discretion of the governing body and
is not a requirement of the local budget law.

*Note: ORS 204.126 says the county budget committee or TSCC
approves changes in the salary of elected county officials.



After the budget is approved by the budget Where can | direct my questions regarding
committee and recommended to the governing budget committees?

body, what action does the governing body take? Oregon Department of Revenue

The governing body must publish a financial summary of Finance, Taxation and Exemptions
the budget that was approved by the budget committee. PO Box 14380

The notice of the budget hearing is also published with Salem OR 97309-5075

the financial summary. At the public hearing, the govern-
ing body hears any citizen input on the approved budget.
The governing body may make additional adjustments
to the budget that was approved by the budget commit-
tee. Following the hearing and no later than June 30, the
governing body must adopt the budget, make appropria-
tions, and set the property tax levy rate or amount. If a
property tax is required, the governing body must certify
the tax to the county assessor no later than July 15.

Telephone: 503-945-8293
Fax: 503-945-8737
Email: finance.taxation@oregon.gov

What if the governing body changes the budget
approved by the budget committee in ways that
the budget committee does not approve?

The governing body has that right. However, the amount
of the estimated expenditure for each fund may not be
increased more than 10 percent unless a summary of the
revised budget is again published and another public
hearing is held. In addition, the total property tax to be
levied may not exceed the amount or rate shown in the
budget that was approved by the budget committee and
published with the notice of the budget hearing without
once again publishing the revised budget and holding
another public hearing. Of course, budget committee
members are free to attend that hearing and voice their
opinions of the changes made by the governing body.

What is a supplemental budget?

Districts may find it necessary to prepare a supplemental
budget at some point during the fiscal year. Circumstanc-
es under which a supplemental budget is authorized are:

e An occurrence, condition, or need arises which was not
known at the time the budget was adopted.

¢ Additional funds are made available after the budget
was adopted.

Although the budget committee is usually not involved
with supplemental budgeting, the procedures for sup-
plemental budgets are similar to those for the annual
budget. If estimated expenditures are being changed by
more than 10 percent, these procedures include a public
hearing and publishing a notice and budget summary
five to 30 days prior to the hearing.

Where can | find the law that governs the creation
and operation of budget committees?

Budget committees are required in Oregon’s Local
Budget Law. This law is found in the Oregon Revised
Statutes (ORS) beginning at ORS 294.305.

These statutes as well as additional information can be
found on the Department of Revenue website at www.
oregon.gov/DOR.

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14) 1 2

54 of 60



Administration Checklist
v
v

Gather budget requests.

Evaluate budget requests and develop proposed
budget.

Develop estimates of revenue.

Prepare budget proposal.

Estimate ad valorem taxes in budget document.
Prepare budget message.

Publish required notices and budget summary.

AN NN S

Provide citizens with information about approved
budget.

Budget Committee Checklist
v

v

Establish a meeting calendar.

At first meeting, elect presiding officer (required) and
vice chair (optional).

At first meeting, establish budget committee proce-
dural rules.

AN

At first meeting, receive budget message and pro-
posed budget.

Request information.
Make budget documents available to any person.

Provide opportunities for citizens to ask questions.

DN N N

Approve motion setting the rate or amount of taxes
necessary to balance budget.

AN

Approve budget and recommend to the governing
body.

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

13

Glossary

Here are some terms you will use as you work on your
budget.

Adopted budget. The financial plan adopted by the
governing body which forms a basis for appropriations.

Ad valorem tax. A property tax computed as a percent-
age of the value of taxable property. See “Assessed
value.”

Appropriation. Based on an adopted budget, an au-
thorization for spending specific amounts of money
for specific purposes during specific periods of time.
Presented in a resolution or ordinance adopted by the
governing body.

Assessed value. The portion of value of real or personal
property that is taxable. It is the lesser of the property’s
real market value or the constitutional value limit
(maximum assessed value—MAYV). The value limit may
increase 3 percent annually unless qualifying improve-
ments or changes are made to the property. These im-
provements or changes allow the value limit to increase
by more than 3 percent.

Biennial budget period. A 24-month period beginning
July 1 and ending June 30 of the second succeeding year.

Budget. Written report showing the local govern-
ment’s comprehensive financial plan for one fiscal year.
Must include a balanced statement of actual revenues
and expenditures during each of the last two years,
estimated revenues and expenditures for the current and
upcoming year.

Budget committee. Fiscal planning board of a local gov-
ernment, consisting of the governing body plus an equal
number of legal voters from the district.

Budget message. An explanation of the budget and local
government’s financial priorities. Prepared by or under
the direction of the executive officer or presiding officer
of the governing body.

Budget officer. Person appointed by the governing body
to assemble budget material and information, prepare
the proposed budget, and oversee the budget process.

Capital outlay. Items which generally have a useful life
of one or more years, such as machinery, land, furniture,
equipment, or buildings.

County elections officer. County clerk or registrar of
elections.

55 of 60



District. See “Local government.”

Expenditures. Decreases in net financial resources if ac-
counts are kept on an accrual or modified accrual basis;
total amount paid if accounts are kept on a cash basis.

Fiscal year. A 12-month period beginning July 1 and
ending June 30.

Fund. A division in a budget segregating independent
fiscal and accounting requirements. An entity within a
government’s financial plan designated to carry on spe-
cific activities or to reach certain objectives.

Governing body. County court, board of commissioners,
city council, school board, board of trustees, board of
directors, or other governing board of a local govern-
ment.

Line-item budget. The traditional form of budgeting,
where proposed expenditures are based on individual
objects of expense within a department or division.

Local government. Any city, county, port, school
district, public, or quasi-public corporation (including
a municipal utility or dock commission) operated by a
separate board or commission.

Municipality. See “Local government.”

Ordinance. Written directive or act of a governing body.
Has the full force and effect of law within the local
government’s boundaries, provided it does not conflict
with a state statute or constitutional provision. See also
“Resolution.”

Organizational unit. Any administrative subdivision of
a local government, especially one charged with carrying
on one or more specific functions (such as a department,
office, or division).

Payroll expenses. Health and accident insurance premi-
ums, Social Security and retirement contributions, and
civil service assessments, for example.

Permanent rate limit. A district’s permanent ad valorem
property tax rate for operating purposes. This rate levied
against the assessed value of property raises taxes for
general operations. Permanent tax rate limits were either
computed by the Department of Revenue for districts
existing prior to 1997-1998 or are voter-approved for
districts formed in 1997-1998 and later.

Program. A group of related activities to accomplish a
major service or function for which the local government
is responsible.

Property taxes. Amounts imposed on taxable property
by a local government within its operating rate limit,
levied under local option authority, or levied to repay
bonded debt.

Proposed budget. Financial and operating plan prepared
by the budget officer, submitted to the public and budget
committee for review.

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

Real market value. Value at which a property would be
sold by an informed seller to an informed buyer on the
appraisal date. Value set on real and personal property
as a basis for testing the (Measure 5) constitutional limits.

Reserve fund. Established to accumulate money from
one fiscal year to another for a specific purpose.

Resolution. A formal expression of will or intent voted
by an official body. Statutes or charter will specify actions
that must be made by ordinance and actions that may be
by resolution. (For cities, revenue raising measures such
as taxes, special assessments, and service charges always
require ordinances.) See “Ordinance.”

Resources. Estimated beginning fund balances on hand
at the beginning of the fiscal year, plus all anticipated
revenues.

Revenues. Monies received or anticipated by a local
government from either tax or nontax sources.

Supplemental budget. Prepared to meet unexpected
needs or to spend revenues not anticipated at the time
the regular budget was adopted. Cannot be used to in-
crease a tax levy.

Tax levy. Taxes imposed by a local government unit
through a rate or amount.

Transfers. Amounts distributed from one fund to finance
activities in another fund. Shown as a requirement in the
originating fund and a revenue in the receiving fund.

Unappropriated ending fund balance. Amount set aside
in the budget to be used as a cash carryover to the next
year’s budget, to provide the local government with a
needed cash flow until other money is received. This
amount cannot be transferred by resolution or used
through a supplemental budget during the fiscal year
it is budgeted unless there is a significant calamity or
natural disaster.



Where to get help preparing your local budget

Finance, Taxation and Exemptions....... 503-945-8293
Email ..o finance.taxation@oregon.gov

Each year the Department of Revenue makes
available a booklet that contains forms and
instructions for summarizing your district’s budget
for publication and certifying the tax levies to
the assessor. These forms meet the minimum
requirements of local budget law and are free of
charge.

The forms are available each year beginning in
January on the department’s website at www.
oregon.gov /dor.

The booklet is available upon request by contacting
the Finance, Taxation and Exemptions Unit by tele-
phone, email, or at the address below. If you would
like a copy sent to you, please request your copy no
later than November 15.

Finance, Taxation and Exemptions Unit
Oregon Department of Revenue

PO Box 14380

Salem OR 97309-5075

Your district may also computer-generate the budget
detail and publication forms based upon your
district’'s own computer formatting.

Have questions? Need help?

General tax information......... www.oregon.gov/dor
Salem......cccvviiviiniiii e 503-378-4988
Toll-free from an Oregon prefix.......1-800-356-4222

Asistencia en espaiol:
En Salem o fuera de Oregon................ 503-378-4988
Gratis de prefijo de Oregon.............. 1-800-356-4222

TTY (hearing or speech impaired; machine only):
Salem area or outside Oregon ............. 503-945-8617
Toll-free from an Oregon prefix...... 1-800-886-7204

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): Call one of
the help numbers above for information in alterna-
tive formats.

150-504-400 (Rev. 02-14)

57 of 60



58 of 60



Port of Newport

Notes and Questions

59 of 60



Port of Newport

Notes and Questions

60 of 60



	LB Budget Forms 2019-20.pdf
	LB-20
	LB-30
	LB-31 PS
	LB-31 M&S
	LB-35-BDF
	LB11-FMRF
	LB10-CF
	LB10-NOAA

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	2019.04.24 LP Lease Revenue Detail FY2019-20.pdf
	LEASES

	2019.05.07 Personnel Services Detail 2019-20.pdf
	Personnel Svcs

	Capital Projects 2019.04.26 (V3 TD Edits).pdf
	2019-20 Recommended
	2019-20 Cap Projects by Fund

	Blank Page
	2019.04.11 Debt Service FY2019-20 Detail-3.pdf
	Debt Service

	Blank Page
	2019-20 Committee Calendar 2019.05.03.pdf
	BUDGET OFFICER

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	2019.05.07 Personnel Services Detail 2019-20.pdf
	Personnel Svcs




